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Medicare Hospice Provider Cap Calculated Improperly

In a victory for hospice providers, the U.S. District Court for the Northern 
District of Texas recently determined that the Medicare hospice provider cap 
is calculated in a way that is “arbitrary and capricious, an abuse of discretion, 
and not in accordance with the law.”

Under the statute (42 U.S.C. § 1395f (i)(2)(C)), the amount paid for hospice care 
for an accounting year is limited to a “cap amount” for the year, multiplied by 
the “number of Medicare beneficiaries” in the hospice program in that year. In 
fiscal year 2009, according to the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services, 
the amount for hospice care was $23,014.50. The statute provides that the 
number of Medicare beneficiaries for purposes of this calculation should be 
reduced to reflect the proportion of hospice care that each individual was 
provided in a previous or subsequent year.

In the case of Lion Health Services Inc. v. Sebelius, 2010 WL 637954 (N.D. Tex.), 
the hospice provider argued that the Department of Health and Human Ser-
vices’ (HHS) method of calculating the “number of Medicare beneficiaries” was 
flawed because it was based upon a regulation, 42 C.F.R. § 418.309(b)(1), that 
conflicts with the statute. In contrast to the provisions contained in the stat-
ute, the regulation only counts a Medicare hospice beneficiary during a single 
fiscal year, even if that beneficiary has received care during other fiscal years. 
This has the effect of limiting the “number of Medicare beneficiaries,” thereby 
artificially reducing the amount of the hospice cap. 

 The Court determined that HHS’s current method of calculating the aggre-
gate cap based upon 42 C.F.R. § 418.309(b)(1) does not accurately reflect the 
number of beneficiaries who received care at the Lion Health facility, and 
ruled in favor of the hospice provider. The Court concluded that 42 C.F.R. § 
418.309(b)(1) is manifestly contrary to 42 U.S.C. § 1395f(i)(2)(C), and that the 
regulation should be set aside because the statute requires that each such 
individual who was also provided hospice care in other accounting years must 
be counted toward the “number of beneficiaries” as a fraction.
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This alert provides a general summary of recent legal developments. It is not intended to be, and should not be relied upon as, legal advice.

What does this case mean for your hospice?

Any hospice that receives a cap repayment demand should be aware of the time limits for filing an •	
appeal, and should consult with legal counsel to determine if an appeal is warranted.
Any hospice that did not file a timely appeal to a cap repayment demand based upon the current •	
rule should promptly consult with legal counsel to determine if a belated appeal is possible.


